COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Between

LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

And

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 503, OPEU

July 1, 2016 – June 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| PREAMBLE | . 1 |
|---|-----|
| ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION | |
| ARTICLE 2 - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT | 2 |
| ARTICLE 3 – OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT | |
| ARTICLE 4 – UNION SECURITY AND CHECK-OFF | 3 |
| ARTICLE 5 – NO STRIKENO LOCK-OUT | . 5 |
| ARTICLE 6 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS | . 5 |
| ARTICLE 7 – UNION RIGHTS | 6 |
| ARTICLE 8 – SENIORITY | |
| ARTICLE 9 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD | 9 |
| ARTICLE 10 – HOURS AND OVERTIME | |
| ARTICLE 11 – COMPENSATION | 12 |
| ARTICLE 12 – HOLIDAYS | 14 |
| ARTICLE 13 – VACATION | |
| ARTICLE 14 – SICK LEAVE | 17 |
| ARTICLE 15 – OTHER LEAVES | 18 |
| ARTICLE 16 – INSURANCE | |
| ARTICLE 17 – RETIREMENT | |
| ARTICLE 18 – DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE | 23 |
| ARTICLE 19 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE | 23 |
| ARTICLE 20 – HEALTH AND SAFETY | 27 |
| ARTICLE 21 – WORKERS' COMPENSATION | |
| ARTICLE 22 – FILLING OF POSITIONS | 28 |
| ARTICLE 23 – JOB SHARE | |
| ARTICLE 24 – STANDARDS OF WORK | |
| ARTICLE 25 - CAREER DEVELOPMENT | 32 |
| ARTICLE 26 – PERSONNEL FILES | 33 |
| ARTICLE 27 – EXISTING CONDITIONS AND SAVINGS CLAUSE | |
| ARTICLE 28 – TERM OF AGREEMENT | 34 |
| Exhibit A Expired Letter of Agreement Stating Salary Survey Methodology | 37 |
| Letter of Agreement - Standards of Work | 38 |
| APPENDIX A – CLASSIFICATION LIST AND SALARY RANGES | 39 |
| APPENDIX B - PERMISSIBLE USE OF SICK TIME | 40 |

PREAMBLE

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between the LANE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, herein referred to as LCOG, and the SERVICE EMPLOYEESS INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU) Local 503, Oregon Public Employees Union (OPEU), herein referred to as the Union, and is binding upon the Union and LCOG and all designated representatives of the Union and LCOG.

ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION

- 1.1 LCOG hereby recognizes the UNION as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all employees of LCOG's Senior and Disabled Services Division, excluding all supervisors, confidential employees, and employees of the Senior Meals Program, who work in the classifications reflected in Appendix A, except exempt employees as defined in this Agreement, for the purposes of collective bargaining concerning employment relations.
- 1.2 Temporary appointments shall be used for the purpose of meeting emergency, nonrecurring or short-term workload needs. Employment of a temporary worker other than to replace a regular employee on leave, shall not exceed the equivalent of six (6) calendar months (1,040 hours) in a twelve-month period. A temporary appointment made to replace a regular employee on leave shall not exceed the period of the leave.
- 1.3 Temporary, seasonal, and on-call employees are not covered by this Agreement.
- 1.4 In recognition of the benefits of ongoing communication and collaboration, a joint Labor/Management Committee will be established. The Labor/Management Committee will consist of three (3) bargaining unit representatives, one (1) SEIU Local 503, OPEU representative to be appointed by the Union and up to four (4) Employer representatives appointed by LCOG.

In order to facilitate communication between the parties, the committee shall meet regularly, at least once a calendar quarter or when mutually agreed upon by all parties.

LCOG/SEIU employees appointed to the Labor/Management Committee shall be in pay status during time spent in committee meetings. The Committee shall be on a meet-and-confer basis only and shall not be construed as having either the authority or the entitlement to negotiate. The Committee shall not have power to contravene any provision of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. Unless otherwise provided, no discussion or review of any matter by the Committee shall forfeit or affect the time frames related to the grievance procedure. The activities and results of the Labor/Management Committee shall not be cited as precedent setting unless mutually agreed upon by all parties.

ARTICLE 2 - NON-DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT

2.1 It is the policy of LCOG and the Union not to engage in unlawful discrimination against any employee because of race, color, marital status, religion, sex, national origin, age, gender identity, mental and/or physical disability. Neither will LCOG or the Union discriminate based on sexual orientation or political belief. To this end, the parties further agree to apply the provisions of the Agreement equally to all employees in the bargaining unit without regard to their status in any of the categories specified above and to support application of federal and state laws and regulations, where applicable.

Lawful affirmative action programs or other forms of preferential treatment required by state or federal law do not constitute discrimination under this Article.

- 2.2 Sexual harassment is considered a form of sex discrimination. No employee shall be subjected to sexual harassment by LCOG, the Union, or other bargaining unit members or any other employee of LCOG. Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other deliberate or repeated unsolicited verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when:
 - a. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term of condition of an individual's employment;
 - b. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual; or
 - c. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment.
- 2.3 Both LCOG and the Union recognize that all employees have the right to work in a safe environment free of workplace hostility; furthermore, all employees also have the right to be treated courteously and with respect while at work. To ensure that this right is upheld, both LCOG and the Union agree, for the purposes of administering this Article, to form an ad hoc committee consisting of up to three (3) Bargaining Unit representatives and one (1) SEIU Local 503, OPEU representative to be appointed by the Union and up to four (4) Employer representatives to be appointed by LCOG. The committee shall convene at the request of either party no more than one (1) time per month to attempt to resolve any incidents of workplace hostility or retaliation. If the committee is unable to reach a resolution through the above outlined process the parties agree to resolve the issue through the grievance procedure as outlined in Article 17 – Grievance Procedure.

ARTICLE 3 – OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

LCOG is the primary employer for its employees. Employees may not accept outside employment that is incompatible or in conflict with their LCOG positions. Whenever an employee obtains outside employment, while an employee of LCOG, the employee shall notify his/her direct

supervisor, in writing, prior to beginning the outside employment. No employee may accept outside employment that is:

- a. not compatible with the employee's LCOG work schedule,
- b. detracts from the efficiency of the employee's workload,
- c. in conflict with the interests of LCOG,
- d. discredit to LCOG.

An employee is responsible for assuring that his/her outside employment does not conflict with the above statement, and in the event of a conflict shall immediately discontinue the outside employment.

ARTICLE 4 – UNION SECURITY AND CHECK-OFF

4.1 All applications or cancellations of membership shall be submitted by the employee to the Union. When the Union sends to LCOG a record of the written, electronic or recorded oral request from an employee, LCOG shall deduct from the employee's pay and remit to the Union monthly Union dues plus any additional voluntary Union deductions.

Written application for Union membership and/or authorizations for Union dues and/or other deductions or dues cancellations which LCOG receives will be promptly forwarded to the Union. The Union will maintain the written, electronic and recorded oral authorization records and will provide copies to LCOG upon request.

Dues will continue to be deducted until the Union informs LCOG that the employee rescinds the request in writing pursuant to the applicable procedures in the membership dues check-off authorization. Copies of all such requests for membership cancellation that LCOG receives shall be transmitted to the Union. If the Union informs LCOG that an employee cancels his/her membership, LCOG shall immediately begin deducting fair share payments as per applicable state and federal law.

A file containing new authorizations or changes in authorizations for employee Union deductions will be submitted by the Union to LCOG electronically by close of business on the business day immediately preceding the twentieth (20th) of each month. LCOG agrees that new or changed payroll deduction authorizations submitted within the above timelines shall be made for the pay period in which such list is submitted by the 5th of the next month.

The deductions so collected from all employees, together with an itemized statement, shall be remitted to the Union's Salem headquarters within ten (10) days after such deductions are made. The statement shall include the following information for each bargaining unit employee: name, employee ID number, manager, classification, range and step, gross earnings, amount of dues withheld and additional voluntary Union deductions.

Within a week of a new employee starting in or returning to a bargaining unit position, LCOG will provide the name of that employee to the Union, along with the following

information: home address, home phone number, work email address, work phone number, work location, FTE, employee ID number, hire date, manager and classification.

Quarterly, LCOG will send to the Union a list of all LCOG employees who are paying Union dues. That list will include the following information: name, employee ID number, manager, classification, range and step, hire date, work phone number and email address, home phone number and home address.

- 4.2 After a period of thirty (30) days of employment, each employee shall either join the Union or pay a fair share amount, as determined by the Union in accordance with statutory and constitutional requirements, except as specified in Section 4.4 below. Fair share deductions shall be made as described above in Section 4.1, except that, under Oregon law, no authorization is necessary.
- 4.3 If an individual employee has an objection to the requirements of this Article based on bona fide religious tenets of a church or religious body of which s/he is a member, s/he shall inform the Union and LCOG of his/her objection. The employee must meet with Union representatives to establish a mutually agreeable arrangement for the contribution of an amount of money equal to regular Union dues to a nonreligious charity. The employee shall provide written proof to LCOG that the contribution has been made. In turn, LCOG shall forward a copy of such proof to the Union.
- 4.4 LCOG will not be held liable for check-off errors but will make proper adjustments with the Union for errors as soon as is practicable. The Union will indemnify, defend, and hold LCOG harmless against any and all claims, demand or suits and for all legal costs that arise out of, or by reason of, actions taken or not by LCOG, in complying with the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 5 – NO STRIKE--NO LOCK-OUT

- 5.1 The Union and its members, as individuals or as a group, will not initiate, cause, participate in, or join in any strike, work stoppage or slowdown, or any other interruption of work, at any location during the term of this Agreement. An employee in the bargaining unit, while acting in the course of their employment, shall not honor any picket line established by the Union or by any other labor organization when called upon to cross picket lines in the line of duty. Disciplinary action, up to and including discharge, may be taken by LCOG against any employees who engage in activities prohibited by this Article.
- 5.2 In the event of a strike, work stoppage or slowdown, picketing, observance of a picket line, or any other interruption of work, either on the basis of individual choice or collective employee conduct, the Union will immediately, upon notification, take all reasonable steps to terminate such activity and induce the employees concerned to return to work.
- 5.3 There shall be no lockout of employees instituted by LCOG during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- 6.1 LCOG retains all the customary, usual and exclusive rights, decision-making prerogatives, functions, and authority connected with, and in any way incident to, its responsibility to manage the affairs of LCOG or any part of it not specifically limited by the terms of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, directing the activities of the agency; determining the levels of service and methods of operation including subcontracting and the introducing of new equipment; the right to hire, lay off, transfer, and promote; the right to discipline or discharge for just cause; the right to determine work schedules and assign work; and, any other such rights not specifically referred to in this Agreement. LCOG may take whatever action it deems appropriate, except when specifically in conflict with this Agreement.
- 6.2 Management rights, except where abridged by specific provisions of this Agreement, are not subject to the grievance procedure.
- 6.3 The Union recognizes that LCOG has the right, during the term of this Agreement, to decide to contract out work performed by bargaining unit members. Contracting out is defined as the hiring of any non-bargaining unit members to do work that has traditionally been performed by members of the bargaining unit, or that would displace or disadvantage current members of the bargaining unit in regard to hours or conditions of work, or compensation, including overtime. The following would apply should LCOG decide to contract out (but would not apply if the contracting out is due to an emergency or to the actions of the State or Federal government):
 - a. LCOG agrees to provide the Union with no less than sixty (60) days' notice that it intends to request proposals for contracting out bargaining unit work where the decision would result in displacement of bargaining unit members. During this sixty (60) days, LCOG shall not release any requests for proposals. The Union shall have the opportunity to submit its own proposal not later than the last date for

the submission of proposals. The Union shall be afforded the opportunity to demonstrate to LCOG that the current bargaining unit members could deliver the service cost effectively and/or with similar quality. The work shall not be contracted out should LCOG determine that the Union has demonstrated the capability to deliver service equal to or better than that of the potential contractor(s) in terms of cost effectiveness and quality.

- b. LCOG will conduct an evaluation to determine the potential costs and benefits that would result from contracting out the work in question.
- c. LCOG agrees to notify the Union within one (1) week of its decision to conduct an evaluation, including the job classifications and work areas affected. Upon completion of the evaluation, a copy of the evaluation shall be given to the Union
- d. In any Request for Proposals, LCOG will require applicants to describe the method they intend to use to consider and give preference to current LCOG bargaining unit members for employment. LCOG shall furnish copies of all proposals to the Union.
- e. If management anticipates that any bargaining unit members will be displaced as a result of contracting out, LCOG and the Union shall meet to discuss the effect on bargaining unit members prior to implementing a decision to contract out. LCOG's obligation to discuss the effect of contracting out does not obligate it to secure the Agreement of the Union or to exhaust the dispute resolution procedure outlined in the Oregon Revised Statutes concerning the decision or the impact prior to implementing its decision whether or not to contract out the work in question.
- f. An employee laid off as a result of the contracting out retains his/her layoff rights as defined in Article 8 Seniority.

ARTICLE 7 – UNION RIGHTS

- 7.1 Employees covered by this Agreement are entitled to act through a Union representative in taking any grievance action or following any alternative procedure under this Agreement. Once a bargaining unit member has filed a grievance, s/he shall not be required to discuss the subject matter of the grievance without the presence of the Union representative if the employee elects to be represented by the Union.
- 7.2 Union staff, with approval from a responsible manager, shall be allowed reasonable contact with bargaining unit members at LCOG facilities. The purpose of these visits will be to meet with Union stewards, employees, or management regarding any actions or procedures under this Agreement, including but not limited to employee grievances. Representatives will have the right to contact any represented employee in the workplace as long as it does not interfere with the normal flow of work (e.g., during lunch hour, breaks, or before and after work shifts).

- 7.3 Authorized Union representatives shall be allowed reasonable time off without loss of pay during their normal working hours for the purpose of meeting with LCOG for negotiations, grievances, investigatory meetings, or other similar purposes. All grievance proceedings when practicable shall be held during normal working hours. No overtime will be incurred as a result of the time spent for these purposes. "Authorized Union representative" shall mean any Union officer (President, Vice-President, Secretary/Treasurer), Union Steward, or any other person who has been designated in writing by a Union officer or SEIU Local 503, OPEU staff member as an official Union representative. The Union shall furnish LCOG with a list of authorized Union representatives.
- 7.4 LCOG will allow forty (40) hours total per fiscal year for authorized Union representatives to perform representational activities, such as grievance investigations (other than those activities covered in Section 7.4 above), so long as their absences do not hamper the agency's operations. Reasonable notice shall be given to the appropriate supervisor prior to a representative being gone from work. Representatives must record time spent in these activities on their time sheets. If the maximum allowable hours are reached within a fiscal year, LCOG agrees to meet with the Union and discuss additional hours being granted.
- 7.5 Employees requesting leave for reason of paid or unpaid Union appointment or to attend Union functions other than those listed above are eligible for consideration for use of personal leave or leave without pay. When such time off is used, normally notice of no less than five (5) days will be given. Nothing in this Article is intended to prevent approval of time off with less than five (5) days' notice if no conflict with divisional operations exists.
- 7.6 The Union may hold meetings in LCOG's offices before or after business hours, or between 12:00 noon and 1:00 p.m.
- 7.7 LCOG shall furnish the Union bulletin board space. The Union shall limit the use of the space to the posting of notices of general employee interest and Union meetings. The Union shall maintain the space in good order. LCOG also agrees to set up an email distribution list for use by the Union to share appropriate Union-related business with members. It is understood that LCOG maintains ownership of its computer systems and has the authority to view all communications therein.
- 7.8 The Union may use LCOG's duplication and other office equipment, upon appropriate approval, at such times as they are not used for LCOG business. The Union shall pay LCOG for the cost of the use of the equipment and supplies, including applicable labor.
- 7.9 The Union will provide LCOG with a list of officers, stewards, and other authorized Union representatives and will promptly notify LCOG of any changes in the authorized representatives and stewards. There will be a maximum of seven (7) Union Stewards; five (5) at the Eugene offices, one (1) at the Cottage Grove office and one (1) at the Florence office. If a steward is not elected in the Cottage Grove and/or Florence office, those steward positions will be filled by adding stewards in the Eugene office, up to a total of seven (7).

- 7.10 If problems arise regarding Union officers, stewards, or representative's activities, the Union agrees to discuss the problem with LCOG to try to reach a mutually agreeable solution.
- 7.11 LCOG will make a copy of this Agreement available to each bargaining unit employee either in hard copy or electronically.
- 7.12 LCOG will notify the Union of any new employees hired within a calendar week of the new employee's starting date. A Union representative and each new employee shall have thirty (30) minutes paid time to meet to meet for an informational orientation.
- 7.13 LCOG shall provide on a monthly basis to the Union, in electronic form if possible, the following information for each Bargaining unit employee: Full name, classification, rate of pay, date of hire, FTE, work location, work phone number.
- 7.14 LCOG will provide the Union a written report every six (6) months of all temporary employees doing bargaining unit work. This report shall contain the following: name, classification, position, start date, actual end date and number of hours worked in those six (6) months.
- 7.15 LCOG shall grant a Leave of Absence for employees elected to hold the office of statewide SEIU Local 503, OPEU President for the entirety of the term of office. The Union shall, within thirty (30) days of payment to the President, reimburse LCOG for payment of appropriate salary, benefits, paid leave time, pension, and all other employer-related costs. The Union shall indemnify and the Union and President hold LCOG harmless against any and all claims, damages, suits, or other forms of liability which may arise out of any action taken or not taken by LCOG for the purpose of complying with this Section.

ARTICLE 8 – SENIORITY

- 8.1 Seniority will be determined by a regular employee's length of continuous service with LCOG in a bargaining unit position since his/her last date of hire. If two (2) or more employees start on the same date, their order of seniority shall be determined by random selection. Once determined, the employees' relative seniority shall be fixed.
- 8.2 An employee shall lose all seniority credit if the employee resigns, retires, is discharged, is laid off and fails to respond to written notice as provided in Section 8.11 below, or is laid off for a period greater than eighteen (18) months or a period of time greater than the length of the employee's continuous service with LCOG, whichever is shorter. Employees who take a leave without pay may have their seniority date adjusted as specified in Article 15, Other Leaves.
- 8.3 Employees who leave the bargaining unit for another position with LCOG shall have seniority credit for previous service in this bargaining unit restored upon returning to work in the bargaining unit.

- 8.4 An employee who is transferred from another public agency per ORS 236.605 236.640, into a bargaining unit position will be given seniority credit for all time served in a regular position in the other agency subject to ORS 236.610 and 236.620.
- 8.5 LCOG will provide the Union with a copy of the seniority list on July 1 of each year and will post the list in a conspicuous place available to employees.
- 8.6 If LCOG should reduce its work force, layoffs of regular, non-probationary employees shall be made by classification based on seniority. LCOG agrees to notify employees not less than sixty (60) days prior to any layoff, unless there are extenuating circumstances.
- 8.7 Employees who are to be laid off may bump laterally or down within the same division to a classification previously occupied by the employee and for which the employee is still qualified to perform the required work.
- 8.8 An employee who wishes to bump must provide written notice to LCOG no later than seven (7) calendar days from the date of notification of layoff. Failure to provide written notice within that time shall be deemed as waiver of the right by the employee.
- 8.9 Employees who are to be laid off will be given consideration for transfers or demotions to vacant positions if the employee possesses the skill, ability, and experience required for the position in accordance with Article 22 Filling of Positions.
- 8.10 Employees who have been laid off have the right to be recalled to their previously held classification for the time period defined in Section 8.2. Employees shall be recalled in seniority order. If there are no employees eligible for recall to the classification to be filled, any employees on the recall list who qualify for a voluntary demotion or transfer into the position will be offered the recall opportunity.
- 8.11 Notice to an employee of recall shall be made by certified mail to the last address provided to LCOG by the employee. The employee shall have fourteen (14) calendar days to return to work from the mailing date of the letter. If an employee fails to return within that time, s/he will be removed from the recall list and forfeit all seniority.
- 8.13 There shall be no bumping between the bargaining unit and LCOG staff not represented by this bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 9 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD

- 9.1 LCOG agrees to provide probationary employees with support and clear communication, adequate training, timely feedback and opportunities to correct identified deficiencies.
- 9.2 Every employee hired in the bargaining unit shall serve an initial probationary period of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days, based on the day that the employee starts the job. Employees promoted or transferred to a new or different classification within the bargaining unit will also serve a probationary period of one hundred eighty (180) calendar

days. The employee shall receive at least one Feedback Report/Probation Progress Report within each period 2 through 7 as indicated below, allowing for a grace period of five working days if needed:

| Period 1 | Days 1-45 | No Probation Progress Report required |
|----------|--------------|--|
| Period 2 | Days 46-60 | at least one Feedback Report* |
| Period 3 | Days 61-120 | at least one Probation Progress Report |
| Period 4 | Days 121-180 | at least one Probation Progress Report |
| Period 5 | Days 181-240 | at least one Probation Progress Report |
| Period 6 | Days 241-300 | at least one Probation Progress Report |
| Period 7 | Days 301-365 | at least one Probation Progress Report |

*Feedback Report for Period 2 to be drafted by LCOG with input from the union bargaining team.

- 9.3 A newly hired employee may be disciplined or discharged during the initial probationary period at LCOG's discretion. Such action is not subject to the grievance procedure.
- 9.4 At LCOG's option, the probationary period or the promotional probationary period may be extended in sixty (60) calendar day blocks, to a total of three hundred and sixty-five (365) days of probation, with notice to the affected employee and the Union unless the employee requests otherwise. The probationary period may also be reduced at the discretion of LCOG.

However, the probationary period shall not be extended, nor shall an employee be terminated from initial probation, unless the employee has been given Feedback Reports and Probation Progress Reports per Section 9.2 and the opportunity to correct performance deficiencies and/or behavior. This is a simple notice, not a "just cause" standard for termination, nor does it affect LCOG's rights outlined in Section 9.3.

If an employee's promotional probationary period is extended past one hundred and eighty (180) days, the employee shall receive a one-step increase after successfully completing any extensions to the promotional probationary period.

Employees will be given written notice that her or his probation is ending prior to the end of that period.

9.5 If LCOG determines that a promoted employee fails to meet the requirements for the new position at any time during his/her probation, the employee shall return to the previously held classification or position provided s/he is qualified and has a greater length of service in such classification if s/he is displacing another employee. A promoted employee shall have access to the grievance procedure for all grievable issues except for issues involving LCOG's determination that the employee fails to meet the requirements of the new position.

9.6 During the probationary period, a promoted employee reserves the right to return to his/her previous position or a comparable position if the position is vacant.

ARTICLE 10 – HOURS AND OVERTIME

- 10.1 The workweek is defined as a fixed and regularly recurring period of seven (7) consecutive twenty-four (24) hour periods. The standard workweek for most bargaining unit employees is 12:01 a.m. Sunday to midnight Saturday. Alternate workweeks may be established for different employees or groups of employees.
- 10.2 Work schedules are the work days, days off, and hours of work identified in a workweek for each individual employee.
 - a. For the purpose of this contract, 0.5 FTE per month is defined as half of the month's available paid-status hours.
 - b. Full-time employees will generally be scheduled to work five (5), eight (8) hour workdays.
 - c. Alternative work schedules may include but are not limited to four (4) ten (10) hour work days and eighty (80) hour in nine (9) work days. Employees may request an alternative or reduced work schedule. LCOG agrees to make a good faith effort to accommodate an employee's request within the context of procedural, operational and staffing needs.
 - d. If a request for an alternative work schedule is denied, the manager will provide a written explanation.
 - e. Any employee who is denied an alternative work schedule has the right to respond to the manager addressing the objections and give a proposal on how those objections can be mitigated or overcome. If no agreement can be achieved, an employee has the right to take their proposal to the next level of management for reconsideration.
 - f. LCOG may suspend alternative work schedules or change work schedules as necessary to meet operational needs. However, unilateral changed to schedules must be made in writing and provide an explanation of the operational need. LCOG shall give ten (10) business days' notice of work schedule changes, unless the schedule change is due to an emergency situation or an employee agrees to waive the notice.
- 10.3 For FLSA non-exempt employees, overtime is time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week within the employee's basic workweek. Compensation for overtime shall be at the rate of one-and-one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular rate of pay for all overtime hours worked beyond forty (40) hours. Overtime will be rounded to the nearest quarter (1/4) of an hour. Compensation for overtime shall be pay.

- 10.4 Nothing in this Article shall be construed to require overtime payment at a rate more than one-and-one-half (1-1/2) times an employee's regular rate of pay.
- 10.5 All overtime work shall have the prior approval of the employee's manager.
- 10.6 Employees exempt from the overtime standards of the FLSA will be paid on a salary basis and will not be eligible for overtime.
- 10.7 All employees hired after July 1, 2016 must work at least twenty (20) hours per week, except for approved job shares and limited duration positions as described in Article 22. Employees who work less than forty (40) hours per week will have their pay and leave prorated in accordance with the hours worked.
- 10.8 Employees shall be entitled to a paid fifteen (15) minute rest period for every four (4) hours of work, to be taken, insofar as practicable, in the middle of the block of time. Employees shall be entitled to an unpaid meal period of at least thirty (30) minutes if more than six (6) hours of work are scheduled.
- 10.9 Employees may also request the option to work remotely as part of their regular work schedule.
 - a. If a request to work remotely is denied, the manager will provide a written explanation.
 - b. Any Employee who is denied the option to work remotely has the right to respond to the manager addressing the objections and give a proposal on how those objections can be mitigated or overcome. If no agreement can be achieved, an employee has the right to take their proposal to the next level of management for reconsideration.

ARTICLE 11 – COMPENSATION

- 11.1 The Salary Schedule represents pay for the pay period, one month. Non-exempt employees who work fewer than forty (40) hours per week shall have their pay prorated on the basis of the actual hours worked. Exempt employees will have their pay prorated on the basis of their percent FTE.
- 11.2 When the Employer declares that a lack of funds will necessitate a layoff, the Parties will meet, if requested by either the Employer or the Union, to consider alternatives to layoffs. Such alternatives shall be subject to mutual agreement by the Union and the Employer. In the absence of such mutual agreement, the Employer may implement layoff procedures consistent with the Agreement.
- 11.3 Effective July 1, 2016, salary rates for all employees in the SEIU Local 503, OPEU bargaining unit as described in Article 1 Recognition shall be adjusted upward by 2.75%.

Effective July 1, 2017, salary rates for all employees in the SEIU Local 503, OPEU bargaining unit shall be adjusted upward by 2.0%.

Effective July 1, 2018, salary rates for all employees in the SEIU Local 503, OPEU bargaining unit shall be adjusted upward by 2.0%.

If LCOG's S&DS funding increases by at least 10%, either party may open this article to negotiate wage increases.

11.4 Normally an employee shall be appointed at Step 1 of the employee's range. Assignment to higher steps may be approved by LCOG, based on the employee's experience, qualifications, availability of applications, and the salary relationships with similar positions.

Employees hired or promoted shall receive a one-step increase or retention bonus upon the completion of their probationary period.

Merit increases will be issued every year thereafter on the anniversary date of the employee's successful completion of probation. Increases in pay within a salary range shall be granted to an employee only when that employee qualifies for the increase. To qualify for the increase, the employee must meet the performance standards required for his/her classification and position. This increase will occur up to the top step of the range.

- 11.5 A differential of 3.5% over base rate will be paid to employees in positions which specifically require bilingual skills (i.e. translation to and from English to another foreign language or the use of sign language) as a condition of employment. The interpretation and translation skills must be assigned and contained in an employee's individual position's position description. In order to receive this differential, the employee must be fluent in the second language.
- 11.6 On the first year anniversary date after reaching the top step of the salary scale within the range for their classification and each year thereafter, employees shall receive a three hundred fifty dollars (\$350) retention bonus, provided they have met the job performance standards required for his/her classification and position. If an employee is promoted or reclassed into a different pay range which causes them to be placed at a lower step on the salary scale, the retention bonus will cease until the first year anniversary date after reaching the top step of the salary scale within their new salary range.
- 11.7 An employee who is not granted a merit increase or retention bonus, due to not meeting the job performance standard requirement, does not have the right to grieve the evaluation. However, he/she may appeal the substance of the evaluation either to the supervisor's reviewer or to the reviewer of the evaluation and/or the Executive Director. The employee should submit such an appeal, in writing, within thirty (30) days of receiving the performance evaluation. A merit increase or retention bonus may be given if LCOG determines the employee is meeting the job performance standard within six months of the review date.
- 11.8 An employee assigned to work in the capacity of a higher classification than his/her regular classification shall receive the salary of the higher classification or a one-step increase,

whichever is higher, to which he/she is assigned after ten (10) calendar days in the assignment.

- 11.9 LCOG reserves the right to eliminate classifications or establish new classifications within the bargaining unit with notice to the Union. LCOG shall provide written notification to the Union when a new classification is established if LCOG determines that the classification is appropriately within the bargaining unit represented by the Union. This notification shall include the new title, description, and the proposed salary range for the classification. There will be a 14-day period after the written notice has been given in which the Union may respond in writing, and negotiation regarding the salary range can occur, if necessary. If the Union has not objected to the proposed range within the 14-day period, it will be implemented. Disputes regarding salaries for new classifications established within the bargaining unit shall be resolved through the contract grievance procedures.
- 11.10 Reclassification of positions to a higher or lower salary range may be initiated by management, a supervisor, or an employee. The Union will be notified of all position reclassifications of bargaining unit positions.
- 11.11 LCOG shall provide written notification to the Union when reclassifying a position. This notification shall include: name, salary range, job title and position description. There will be a 14-day period after the written notice has been given in which the Union may deliver to LCOG a written demand to bargain the pay and any other mandatory impacts of the reclassification. The reclassification will be implemented if the Union has not objected within the 14-day period.
- 11.12 LCOG agrees to perform a salary survey, in partnership with the Union's elected bargaining team, of all SEIU-represented classifications to determine whether salaries are competitive with similar agencies. The new salary survey will be conducted using the same methodology and the same comparator agencies used in the 2015 Salary Survey.

The survey shall be completed by December 31st of 2018 and implemented no later than January 1st of 2019. This process shall not result in any salary reduction.

ARTICLE 12 – HOLIDAYS

- 12.1 All regular employees are entitled to the following paid holidays:
 - New Year's Day—January 1
 - Martin Luther King, Jr. Day—the third Monday in January
 - Presidents' Day-the third Monday in February
 - Memorial Day—the last Monday in May
 - Independence Day—July 4
 - Labor Day—the first Monday in September
 - Veterans' Day—November 11
 - Thanksgiving Day—the fourth Thursday in November
 - The day after Thanksgiving
 - Christmas Day—December 25

- The last working day before or after Christmas or New Year's, as designated by the Executive Director
- 12.2 Any recognized holiday occurring on a Sunday shall be observed on the following Monday, and any recognized holiday occurring on Saturday shall be observed on the preceding Friday.
- 12.3 If a holiday occurs during an employee's vacation or sick leave, the time shall not be charged to such leave.
- 12.4 Eligible employees shall receive eight (8) hours pay for each of the holidays listed above. Part-time employees shall receive holiday pay on a pro-rated basis. FLSA non-exempt employees who are required to work on a holiday will receive compensation at the rate one and one-half to one (1.5:1) for all hours worked on the holiday. Generally, if a holiday falls on an employee's regular day off, s/he shall be given an alternate day off. Such alternative day off will be scheduled with the employee's supervisor.

When a full-time employee has been approved to work an alternative work schedule (such as a 9-80 or a 4-10 schedule), the following additional rules shall apply:

- a. The holiday benefit for a full-time employee is eight (8) hours. For employees that work less than full time, the holiday benefit is pro-rated. If a holiday falls on a day when an employee is normally scheduled to work nine (9) or ten (10) hours, a full-time employee shall be granted eight (8) hours of holiday leave. The employee, with the supervisor's approval can choose to revert back to a five (5) day/eight (8) hour work week; use vacation leave, compensatory time, or leave without pay for the additional hours needed to complete the work day. Additionally, and with supervisory approval, an employee may flex the additional hours into the same workweek, as long as by doing so no overtime is incurred. If a holiday falls on a day in which the employee is scheduled to work only eight (8) hours, eight (8) hours of holiday pay shall be granted.
- b. If a holiday falls on a day in which the employee is regularly scheduled to be off, the employee will be granted another day during the workweek as a day off, given the following criteria are met:
 - (1) The employee meets the hourly requirements for the rest of the workweek.
 - (2) Minimum staffing standards are met to assure adequate customer service.
 - (3) The employee must submit a holiday leave request for the additional day off.

(4) For those workers who complete intakes, the additional day off must not conflict with a scheduled intake appointment.

c. If a holiday falls on a day in which the employee is regularly scheduled to be off and the criteria in section (b) above are not met;

(1) Employees on a 4-10 schedule shall revert back to a five (5) day, eight (8) hour work schedule for the week in which the holiday occurs.

(2) Employees on a 9-80 schedule shall revert back to a five (5) day, eight (8) hour work schedule for both the week in which the holiday occurs, as well as for either the prior week or the following week, depending on whether the holiday occurs in the first or second week of the two-week 9-80 schedule.

12.5 In order to qualify for holiday pay, an employee must have worked the last scheduled workday before and the first scheduled workday after the holiday or have been on authorized leave with pay.

ARTICLE 13 – VACATION

- All full-time employees are eligible to accrue vacation. Employees who work less than full 13.1 time will accrue vacation leave on a prorated basis.
- Vacation shall be accumulated at the following rates: Months of Employment Hours of Vacation Accrued Per Month 0-12 (first year) 10.26 (15.39 days/year) 13-24 (second year) 11.00 (16.50 days/year) 25-36 (third year) 11.77 (17.61 days/year) 37-48 (fourth year) 12.43 (18.69 days/year) 49-60 (fifth year) 13.20 (19.80 days/year) 61-72 (sixth year) 13.97 (20.91 days/year) 73-84 (seventh year) 14.63 (21.99 days/year) 85-96 (eighth year) 15.40 (23.10 days/year) 97-108 (ninth year) 16.17 (24.21 days/year) 16.83 (25.29 days/year) 109-120 (tenth year) 121-132 (eleventh year) 17.15 (25.66 days/year) 133-144 (twelfth year) 17.37 (26.02 days/year) 145-156 (thirteenth year) 17.59 (26.38 days/year) 157-168 (fourteenth year) 17.81 (26.75 days/year) 169-180 (fifteenth year) 18.02 (27.09 days/year) 181-192 (sixteenth year) 18.34 (27.46 days/year)
- 13.2

- 13.3 Employees will accrue vacation on all hours worked and hours coded to paid leave in accordance with the schedule above.
- 13.4 Upon termination, an employee shall be paid for all unused vacation leave accumulated to the date of termination at the employee's current salary rate. In case of death,

18.56 (27.82 days/year)

18.78 (28.18 days/year)

18.90 (28.38 days/year)

19.03 (28.59 days/year)

19.03 (28.59 days/year)

193-204 (seventeenth year)

205-216 (eighteenth year)

217-228 (nineteenth year)

229-240 (twentieth year)

240 and over (20 + years)

compensation for accrued vacation leave shall be paid to the beneficiary of the employee designated on a form available to the employees upon request at the Human Resources Department.

- 13.5 Vacation leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of three hundred and twenty (320) hours, unless the employee is requested to postpone taking leave or an employee requests postponement of leave and LCOG approves the request based on the determination that the efficiency of LCOG will not be impaired.
- 13.6 An employee shall provide advance notice of planned vacation leave by submitting a vacation request to his/her immediate supervisor or designee. Unless an employee is directed by LCOG to use a paper leave request form, a request is to be made electronically. An employee's immediate supervisor, or designee, is responsible for approving or denying the employee's vacation request within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the request. The desires of employees shall be taken into consideration when considering vacation requests. Once a vacation request is approved it cannot be changed without the approval of the employee. If, before approved, vacation requests conflict and the matter cannot be resolved between the parties involved, the employee with the most seniority will be granted the time off, provided that the employee has not been given seniority preference for time off any other time within the last two (2) years. Upon receiving a vacation request, there is no requirement that LCOG Management notify SEIU employees of the opportunity to exercise their seniority preference for time off.

ARTICLE 14 – SICK LEAVE

- 14.1 Full-time employees shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours for each full month of service, up to a maximum accrual of eleven hundred (1100) hours. Employees will accrue sick leave on all hours worked and hours coded to paid leave. Employees who work less than full time shall accrue sick leave on a prorated basis.
- 14.2 Sick leave may be used for any purpose listed in Appendix B.
- 14.3 Sick leave may be used for the employee's immediate family per Appendix B. For the purpose of this Article, immediate family shall be defined as the employee's mother, mother in-law, father, father in-law, spouse, sister, sister in-law, brother, brother in-law, child, grandparents, grandchildren, or any person living in the employee's household. Immediate family will also include domestic partner and the equivalent family relations, for employees who are in a qualifying domestic partner relationship pursuant to the LCOG policy on health insurance coverage.
- 14.4 If an employee on sick leave uses all his/her accrued sick leave time, the employee may request the use of vacation or flex-time or leave without pay.
- 14.5 For unanticipated needs that develop prior to the start time of the employee's work day, employees shall notify their managers of the need to use sick leave prior to the start of their shift, except for emergency situations. In the case of an emergency, the employee shall

notify the manager as soon as possible. If possible, the employee shall include the anticipated duration of the sick leave requested.

- 14.6 For anticipated need for sick leave: If the need to use sick leave is foreseeable, the employee shall give her or his manager as many days of advance notice as she or he can.
- 14.7 Employees may have a maximum of fifty-six (56) hours of sick leave credited to their sick leave account upon the date of employment upon presentation of evidence from their previous employer certifying that the employee has fifty-six (56) hours of unused, non-reimbursed, accumulated sick leave at the time of termination.
- 14.8 Medical Verification

LCOG may request medical verification under the following circumstances:

- a. After five (5) consecutive working days of absence due to use of sick leave.
- b. In cases of frequent use of sick leave or when the pattern of sick leave usage indicates potential abuse of sick leave. LCOG may require such verification regardless of whether the employee has used sick leave for more than five (5) consecutive days.
- c. If the need for sick time is foreseeable and is projected to last more than five (5) consecutive work days, LCOG may require that verification be provided before the sick time commences or as soon as otherwise practicable.
- d. When requested, an employee must provide a medical release to return to work and information about any restrictions that may impact the employee's ability to perform his/her job.
- e. LCOG may not require that the verification or release required under this Article explain the nature of the illness that necessitates the use of sick time.
- f. LCOG shall pay the actual costs for obtaining LCOG requested medical verification or release under this Article, including lost wages, that are not paid under the health plan in which the employee is enrolled when obtaining medical verification or release requires an additional medical appointment outside of the employee's regular course of treatment.

ARTICLE 15 – OTHER LEAVES

15.1 Funeral Leave: When an employee serves as a pallbearer, or in some other way participates in a funeral ceremony, he or she shall be granted funeral leave up to, but not to exceed, four (4) hours with pay. Time off due to such absence will not affect vacation or sick leave accrual. If more time is needed to fulfill such duties the employee shall be allowed to use accrued vacation time.

- 15.2 Bereavement Leave: In the event of a death in the immediate family, an employee may take up to five (5) working days as time off with pay to make arrangements and to attend services. Employees may use this time to discharge additional obligations such as, but not limited to, handling of estate issues, administrative issues and/or family matters. LCOG will act in accordance with State and Federal law. For the purposes of this article "immediate family" shall include the employee's or the employee's spouse's parent (includes one who stood in loco parentis), wife, child, husband, child's spouse (includes a child for whom the employee stood in loco parentis), brother, sister, grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, or the equivalent of each for domestic partners or another member of the immediate household. Bereavement leave shall not affect vacation or sick leave accumulation. Bereavement leave is also available under Section 15.6 of this Article and Article 14 (Sick Leave).
- 15.3 Military or Peace Corps Leave: Absence for military leave or Peace Corps leave for an employee shall be allowed as provided by State and Federal law.
- 15.4 Court Duty: An employee called for jury duty or subpoenaed as a witness in court cases in which they are not a party or a Guardian Ad Litem, may be granted leave of absence not to exceed ninety (90) days (subject to extension) during the period of service. LCOG will pay full salary for the period of required service. All monies earned as a juror will be signed over to LCOG. For court events in cases in which the employee is a party to the proceeding or a Guardian Ad Litem, employees must use their own time or vacation leave.
- 15.5 Family Medical Leave: Employees will be granted family medical leave and parental leave in accordance with State and Federal law.
- 15.6 Leave without Pay: In addition to state and federally mandated unpaid leave, an employee may be granted a leave of absence without pay, at LCOG's discretion.
 - a. Leave without pay may be granted before the employee exhausts appropriate earned leave. An employee may choose to maintain forty (40) hours of vacation leave when all other leave is exhausted.
 - b. Leave without pay will not normally be granted for an employee who intends to use the leave to work for another employer or seek other employment.
 - c. LCOG must respond in writing to a request in writing for leave without pay within ten (10) working days.
 - d. Accrual of seniority and all other accrued leaves stops for leaves without pay of thirty (30) calendar days or more, other than military leave, bereavement leave or leave due to an accepted Workers' Compensation claim.
 - e. An employee on leave without pay must be in paid status a minimum of .5 FTE a month to qualify for LCOG-paid insurance. Employees on leave without pay may purchase health insurance at their own expense. Employees on Family Medical

Leave or Oregon Family Leave Act will continue to have health insurance paid, in accordance with State and Federal law.

- f. Subject to the operational needs of LCOG, employees in the bargaining unit shall be granted a leave of absence without pay to work for the Union for a specified period of time. Requests shall be made with reasonable notice by the Union to the LCOG Executive Director or his/her designee. Upon return to service, the employee shall be returned to the same class and the same work location as held when the leave was approved.
- 15.7 Inclement Weather or Hazardous Conditions
 - a. LCOG may close offices and/or curtail office hours because of inclement weather or hazardous conditions. LCOG will make the decisions and notify the flash alerts system no later than 6:00 a.m. the day of closure.
 - b. Adverse Weather When inclement weather or hazardous conditions are so adverse as to endanger the employees' safe travel to and from the work site, employees may elect not to come in or may delay their arrival and/or may arrange to leave early by notifying their managers. When an employee determines the need to alter their work schedule, the employee may opt to charge the absence to vacation, leave without pay or, if possible, an adjusted schedule not to exceed forty (40) hours per scheduled work week.
 - c. Office Closure When LCOG elects to close a work site due to inclement weather or hazardous conditions, employees not on pre-approved leave will be compensated for their regularly scheduled work hours by LCOG.

ARTICLE 16 – INSURANCE

- 16.1 Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance: Bargaining unit employees who are in paid status .5 FTE per month or more as a regular employee are eligible for medical, dental, and vision insurance.
 - a. Employees will be covered by the Health Reimbursement Arrangement Plan (HRA) from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019 for those employees enrolled in a high deductible HRA-eligible plan.
 - b. From July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017, LCOG shall pay monthly premium amounts for employee and family coverage as follows:

For single enrolled employees, the employer will pay the full monthly premium. For employees enrolling themselves and family members, the employee will contribute \$15 of the total monthly premiums toward health care coverage through payroll deduction; LCOG shall pay the balance. Beginning January 1, 2018, all employees will contribute two and one-half percent (2.5%) of the monthly premium cost, up to a maximum of twenty dollars (\$20) per month for employee-only coverage and up to a maximum of sixty dollars (\$60) per month for family coverage.

c. Insurance Committee. LCOG will establish and maintain a joint labor-management insurance committee advisory in nature, charged with identifying the best available health insurance at the lowest cost to employees. The committee will be comprised of nine (9) members, five (5) of which will be members of the SEIU-represented bargaining unit and appointed by the Union. The Human Resources Department will provide staff support to the committee but will not be voting members.

The committee shall meet no later than January 15, 2017 in order to draft ground rules, select a chairperson, decide frequency and duration of meetings, and determine a decision making process. The committee shall select advisors to help it understand all plan options available and recommend to LCOG a choice of health insurance broker, in conformity with Oregon public contracting laws. Consideration will be given to selection of health insurance plans, selection of health insurance providers, benefit design, communication with and education of covered employees. The committee will explore the possibility of the cost share coming out of the HRA amount and make a recommendation prior to January 1, 2018.

The insurance committee will make a recommendation regarding health plans and other benefits to the Executive Director no later than August 15, 2017. If the Executive Director does not accept the committee's recommendation, the Executive Director shall meet with the committee to discuss rationale and engage in a collaborative discussion around alternatives and other options, allowing input from all committee members.

d. As part of the health care plan in effect from July 1, 2016 to December 31, 2017, LCOG will fund the Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) for each employee with an annual contribution of \$1800.00 for single enrolled employees and \$2,580.00 for employees enrolling themselves and family members. The annual contribution shall be front loaded into the HRA on the first day of the month following this contract ratification and on the first day of the benefit year thereafter, or the first day of coverage for new hires. However, for employees who end their employment with LCOG before the end of the contribution year, a pro-rated portion of the employee's contribution, based on a monthly accrual of \$150/\$200 per month depending on level of coverage, is recoverable by LCOG.

For those employees enrolled in a high deductible HRA-eligible plan, after December 31, 2017, LCOG will fund the HRA for each employee enrolled in the plan with an annual contribution in a sum to be determined by the plan.

To qualify to receive the front loaded annual contribution, all employees shall agree in writing, on a form provided by LCOG, to reimburse LCOG for any portion of it that has not yet accrued based on the date their employment ends in the contribution year. When an employee's employment ends, LCOG may reimburse itself the prorated portion of the contribution not yet accrued by payroll deduction from the employee's final paycheck.

- e. LCOG will designate a staff person and a backup contact person to serve as resources for employees regarding health insurance issues and HRA/FSA. The designated staff person and back up contact person will be posted on the LCOG Intranet. LCOG will schedule regular presentations and will provide the opportunity for individual staff consultations with representatives of the insurance provider and the third party administrator.
- 16.2 If the cost of insurance increases more than fifteen percent (15%) in any fiscal year, either party may open this Article to bargain plan component changes only in an effort to reduce costs.
- 16.3 Life, Accidental Death, and Dismemberment Insurance: LCOG shall pay for each regular employee LCOG's group term life, accidental death, and dismemberment insurance premium, which benefit shall be defined to be two (2) times the employee's annual salary, to a maximum of \$100,000 benefit.
- 16.4 Long-Term Disability Insurance: LCOG shall pay for each regular employee working twenty (20) hours or more per week for long-term disability insurance. The plan shall include a provision that the payments will begin ninety (90) calendar days after the commencement of the disability. The rate of payment shall be sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the employee's basic salary, less deductible benefits, with a maximum benefit of \$4,000 per month.

ARTICLE 17 – RETIREMENT

- 17.1 LCOG shall maintain a deferred compensation benefit plan for all regular employees working .5 FTE or more per month. From July 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017, LCOG will contribute fifty dollars (\$50) per month to the employee's account if the employee agrees to defer twenty-five (\$25) or more per month. Effective January 1, 2018, the employer's contribution shall increase to \$62.50 per month if the employee agrees to defer twenty-five dollars (\$25) or more per month.
- 17.2 LCOG shall participate in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). Bargaining unit employees will become PERS members after serving a waiting period of approximately six (6) months, as defined by PERS.
- 17.3 PERS requires two contributions for each eligible employee: an employer contribution on behalf of the employee and an employee contribution of six (6) percent of the employee's salary. LCOG will pay both the employer contribution and, on behalf of employees, will
 LCOG CBA 2016-2019

pay the six percent (6%) percent employee contribution to the employee's PERS member account, and/or Individual Account Program (IAP) as appropriate.

ARTICLE 18 – DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

- 18.1 Unless otherwise warranted by circumstances, discipline shall normally be progressive, beginning with oral reprimand and proceeding to written reprimand, suspension, and discharge. Alternate forms of discipline may be used when deemed more appropriate. No one who has completed the initial probation shall be disciplined or discharged except for just cause. Any disciplinary meeting shall be documented in writing and such documentation will be presented to the employee either at the time of the meeting, or as a follow-up communication within ten (10) working days from the initial meeting. This written document will clarify to the employee the Agency's expectations of his/her performance and the discipline to be imposed.
- 18.2 Employees will be notified of a complaint received against them within one (1) week of the receipt if a disciplinary investigation will be conducted, unless to do so would compromise the investigation.
- 18.3 If LCOG determines that there is just cause for discharge, demotion, or suspension, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the effective date of the discipline, LCOG shall provide the employee with a written due process notice which includes the charges or allegations investigated, the disciplinary action being considered, the grounds for such action, and the right to respond either orally or in writing to the person taking the action prior to the effective date.
- 18.4 Upon the request of the employee, the employee shall be entitled to have a Union representative present during interviews and at any pre-disciplinary meeting scheduled for the purpose of an oral response. This opportunity for representation shall not unduly delay such interviews or meetings. This Section shall not apply to any interview or meeting with an employee in the normal course of work, counseling, instruction, evaluation, or other routine contact with a supervisor.
- 18.5 Employees may be placed on administrative leave with pay during an investigation or to give LCOG time to decide upon its contemplated action. Employees on administrative leave are nonetheless subject to the direction of their manager during their regular work schedule; they must be available by phone during those hours and available to report to work upon the instruction to do so.
- 18.6 LCOG shall conduct all disciplinary and discharge actions with discretion to ensure the employee's dignity, privacy, and confidentiality.
- 18.7 Throughout the entire discipline and discharge process, employees shall have access to Union representation, including on the day of termination.

ARTICLE 19 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

LCOG CBA 2016-2019

- 19.1 The purpose of this procedure is to solve grievances promptly and equitably.
- 19.2 The following definitions apply for the terms of this Article:
 - a. Grievance: A grievance is a dispute regarding the meaning or interpretation of a particular provision of this Agreement or an alleged violation of this Agreement.
 - b. Grievant: The Grievant is the employee(s) making the complaint. The Union may be the "Grievant" in instances where an alleged contract violation affects a clearly defined class of employees.
 - c. Respondent: is LCOG.
 - d. Calendar Day: For purposes of computing time and observing time limits, all references to "day(s)" shall be considered calendar days.
- 19.3 The following general guidelines apply:
 - a. A bargaining unit employee may be represented at any stage of this procedure by a Union representative.
 - b. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by LCOG or any member of the administration, or by any Union member or representative, against any participant in any grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
 - c. Unless mutually agreed upon by the aggrieved employee and LCOG, meetings and hearings under this grievance procedure shall not be conducted in public. The hearings shall include only the Grievant, the Grievant's designated representative, mediator or arbitrator, witnesses, and LCOG representatives.
 - d. A decision, rendered at any level, shall be in writing, setting forth the decision and the reason for it. That document shall be transmitted promptly to the Grievant and to the Union representative.
 - e. It is important that the grievance be processed as rapidly as possible. Specified time limits may, however, be extended by written and signed mutual Agreement between the employee, the Union representative, and the Executive Director or designee. If the grievance is not submitted by the Union or the employee within the time limit established by these procedures or advanced to the next step within the time limits stated to advance it, the grievance shall become void. If an LCOG representative fails to respond to a procedural step within established time lines, the employee may proceed to the next step of this process within the specified time lines.
 - f. LCOG and the SEIU shall together develop a grievance form that permits Grievants to state and advance their grievances and a response form that permits Respondents to respond thereto at each of the four steps set forth in this Article.

- 19.4 Grievances are processed as follows:
 - a. When the aggrieved employee deems it appropriate, she or he should first attempt to resolve the matter informally with the employee's manager or program manager before initiating the formal grievance process. If the employee, in consultation with a Union representative, or the Union determines that the matter cannot be resolved informally, they may proceed to Step 1, below.
 - b. <u>Step 1</u>
 - 1. If the Grievant's attempt to resolve the grievance informally is not successful, the Grievant may submit, within thirty (30) calendar days immediately following the date the employee had, or should have had, knowledge of the action or omission giving rise to the grievance that she or he is grieving, a written notice to the manager which includes a statement of the grievance, the relevant facts, the specific contract provisions in question, and the remedy sought.
 - 2. The manager shall respond to the Grievant in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days.

If the grievance affects a group of employees with more than one manager, the employees may choose to forego Step 1 and proceed directly to Step 2 within the prescribed time lines.

- 3. LCOG shall make grievance forms available to employees on its intranet.
- c. <u>Step 2</u>
 - 1. If the matter is not settled at Step 1, the aggrieved Grievant may file a written grievance to the Division Director with a copy to Human Resources within fourteen (14) calendar days of the receipt of the written decision of the manager.
 - 2. The grievance should contain the following information:
 - i. A precise statement of the facts upon which the complaint is based.
 - ii. The results of previous attempts to resolve the complaint and why such results are unacceptable.
 - iii. The article or provision of the Agreement allegedly violated.
 - iv. The specific remedy sought.
 - v. The signature of the Grievant(s) and/or union representative.
 - vi. The date the form was signed.
 - vii. Copies of any written decisions rendered at Step 1.

- 3. The Division Director or his/her designee shall meet with the Grievant and/or a Union representative within fourteen (14) calendar days after the step 2 grievance has been filed. The Grievant and/or union representative may request that a Union representative be present at the meeting. The Division Director or designee will render a written decision within fourteen (14) calendar days to the Grievant, the Union representative, and Human Resources.
- d. <u>Step 3</u>
 - 1. If the Grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered through the above steps, the employee may appeal the decision to the Executive Director or his/her designee. To appeal the decision, the Grievant must submit the following to the Executive Director or designee within fourteen (14) calendar days of the receipt of the written decision:
 - A written statement describing the Grievant's desired outcome;
 - Copies of all previously submitted written materials and decisions.
 - 2. The Executive Director or designee within fourteen (14) calendar days may convene a meeting of involved parties and shall issue a written decision within fourteen (14) calendar days of the meeting.

e. <u>Step 4 (Optional)</u>

- 1. If the grievance remains unresolved at Step 3 either party may request the opportunity to attempt to resolve the matter through mediation. Such request must be made in writing within seven (7) calendar days of the delivery of the final decision at Step 3. The other party shall have seven (7) calendar days to respond to such request. If the parties mutually agree to engage in mediation, the time limits for submitting the grievance to arbitration shall be temporarily suspended while the parties attempt to resolve the matter through mediation.
- 2. A mediator shall be selected by the parties by alternately striking names from a list of seven (7) Lane County mediators provided by the Oregon State Conciliation Service/Oregon Employment Relations Board.
- 3. Mediation expenses shall be shared equally by LCOG and the Union.
- f. Step 5
 - 1. If after mediation the grievance remains unresolved, or absent an agreement to mediate the grievance, the Union may submit the grievance to arbitration within thirty (30) calendar days of the conclusion of mediation (or from the delivery of the decision at Step 3 if the parties chose not to mediate the matter).

- 2. The parties will attempt to negotiate a mutual statement stipulating the issue to be submitted for arbitration.
- 3. A list of five (5) arbitrators shall be requested from the Employee Relations Board (ERB) and the parties shall alternately strike one name from the list until one is left. The order of striking shall be determined by lot and shall not require more than one day to complete each strike.
- 4. Neither LCOG, nor the Grievant, nor the Union may submit any substantive new factual information in arbitration that was not presented previously in the preceding administrative steps. If, prior to the arbitration hearing, any party discovers evidence not previously discussed, the parties shall reconvene the resolution process at Step 3. This meeting may not delay the arbitration hearing unless all parties mutually agree to delay it.
- 5. The arbitrator shall render a decision within thirty (30) calendar days. The powers of the arbitrator shall be limited to interpreting the Agreement and determining if it has been violated. S/he shall have no authority to alter, modify, vacate, or amend any terms of the Agreement, to decide on any condition which is not specifically treated in the Agreement, or to substitute his/her judgment for that of LCOG. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on all parties.
- 6. Each grievance will be submitted at a separately convened arbitration hearing unless the parties agree mutually to submit more than one grievance at the same arbitration hearing. LCOG and the Union shall share equally in the cost of the arbitrator's fees, as well as the costs of the court reporter or stenographer (if requested by the arbitrator), and the cost of any transcripts furnished to the arbitrator. Each party shall be responsible for all costs of presenting their position to the arbitrator, including attorney fees.
- 19.5 The parties agree that this Agreement and its provisions are to be enforced solely through the grievance procedure or as otherwise expressly specified herein.

ARTICLE 20 – HEALTH AND SAFETY

LCOG acknowledges an obligation to provide a safe work place for its employees and agrees to do so in accordance with any and all applicable local, State, and Federal laws pertaining to health and safety. A Labor/Management Safety Committee will be maintained to discuss issues of mutual concern and make recommendations to the Executive Director regarding the safety of LCOG employees. Two (2) representatives of the bargaining unit will be allowed to participate on the committee. Employees participating on the Committee shall do so without loss of pay.

ARTICLE 21 – WORKERS' COMPENSATION

- 21.1 When an employee is injured on-the-job, s/he is eligible to receive time loss compensation through the Workers' Compensation Program in accordance with State law.
- 21.2 Employees may use sick leave accrual to supplement the employee's time loss income up to the level of his/her normal take home pay until such leave is exhausted. Employees who have exhausted sick leave may use vacation or flex-time to supplement the time loss income up to but no higher than the employee's pay at the time of the claim.

ARTICLE 22 – FILLING OF POSITIONS

- 22.1 Consistent with LCOG's Affirmative Action Plan and except as required by Oregon's Veteran's Preference law, positions will be filled based on merit principles with a commitment to upward mobility for bargaining unit members. In filling of positions, LCOG recognizes the value of employees' years of service and experience.
- 22.2 All vacancies to be filled within S&DS, including limited duration appointments, shall be emailed to all bargaining unit members and posted on LCOG's intranet for five (5) working days prior to the filling of such vacancies and the posting shall include the following information:
 - a) Title of the open position
 - b) Brief description of duties and work to be performed (position description attached)
 - c) Pay range
 - d) Minimum qualifications for employment
 - e) How to file an application (when, where, with whom)
 - f) Location of the position

In order to consider bargaining unit members' continuous service within LCOG, all members of the bargaining unit may apply for any newly created position, existing vacant position, or newly classified position.

After posting for five (5) working days, the position may be posted externally.

22.3 Lateral Transfers, Promotions and Demotions.

The worker with the most seniority (per Article 8) who requests a lateral transfer (a transfer in the same classification) to that position shall be selected.

If no worker requests a lateral transfer to the vacant position, then first consideration shall be given to bargaining unit members who apply for that position, by seniority. First Consideration does not obligate the Employer to hire that person.

No worker shall be required to transfer to another office unless the current office is being closed down and/or another office is opened. If the current office is being closed down and/or another office is opened, positions will be filled first by volunteers in order of seniority. If not enough employees volunteer, then LCOG agrees to make a good faith

effort to fill the remaining positions by reverse seniority within the context of procedural, operational and staffing needs.

22.4 Employees who apply for a position, but are not hired, will be informed in writing. Employees not hired may request and shall receive within a reasonable time a written explanation or reason for the denial of the position. The Employee may also request a meeting with the manager filling the position to ask what education, training or other skills might improve the employee's chances of transfer or promotion in the future. Written notices and feedback given in discussions under this section are not grievable nor disciplinary.

- 22.5 Rate of Pay upon Promotion. An Employee who is promoted shall be given an increase equal to at least one step (in percentage amount) as soon as any new duties are assigned.
- 22.6 Short Term Assignments. A short term assignment may be used for the purpose of meeting nonrecurring or short term workload needs. Opportunities for short term assignments shall be emailed to all bargaining unit members who are currently working within the classification of the short term assignment. Any qualified employee may express interest in the assignment, and the assignment shall be made by management, considering skills, experience and qualifications._

An employee may ask in writing for hardship consideration to not accept the assignment. Any employee who does not volunteer or who requests hardship consideration shall not be subject to disciplinary action or retaliation.

Any employee working in a short term assignment shall have his/her regular ongoing workload reduced proportionately in order to ensure equitable distribution of workload.

22.7 Limited Duration Positions

A limited duration appointment may be used when uncertain or limited funding, i.e., grantfunded, contract, award or legislative funding for a specific project, become available to LCOG, or to provide coverage for an employee or employees on extended leave(s) of absence or temporary reduction(s) in FTE. A limited duration appointment shall not exceed two (2) years in length.

Newly-hired Limited Duration Employees

- (a) A newly-hired limited duration employee shall be covered by the collective bargaining agreement, with the exclusion of lay-off rights at the end of the assignment.
- (b) The newly hired employee will be on probation according to Article 9.

Current Employees Hired into Limited Duration Positions

(a) A current employee who moves from regular status to a limited duration position shall be entitled to all the rights of the current collective bargaining agreement which includes but is not limited to: return rights to the previous position, layoff rights of the collective bargaining agreement, performance appraisal date and merit increase consistent with the original position, continuance of seniority accrual;

- (b) If the limited duration position represents a promotion for the employee, promotional probation will be entered into, as outlined in Article 9.
- (c) When the limited duration position comes to an end, the employee has return rights back to their original position, and will return to the salary range and step the employee would be on had there been no limited duration position;
- (d) Limited duration appointees have all rights and privileges of other classified employees including but not limited to wages, benefits, and Union representation under this Agreement.

Conditions

A person accepting a limited duration position shall be notified of the conditions of the position and acknowledge in writing that they accept that position under these conditions. Such notification shall include the following:

- (a) That the position is of limited duration.
- (b) That the position may cease at any time.
- (c) Those employees who accept limited duration positions, who were not formerly classified employees, shall have no layoff rights.
- (d) That in all other respects, current employees who accept a limited duration position have all rights and privileges of other classified employees including but not limited to wages, benefits, and Union representation under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 23 – JOB SHARE

- 1. Definition of Job Share "Job sharing position" means a full-time (1.0 FTE) represented position that may be held by more than one (1) employee on a shared time basis, whereby the one employee works at least .4 FTE (16 hours a week) and the other employee works the remainder of the FTE to equal 1.0 FTE. LCOG will not approve any requests for a job share that involve either employee working less than .4 FTE and no 0.5 / 0.5 FTE splits will be approved.
- 2. Requesting a Job Share Job sharing is a voluntary program. A job share may be requested by any two employees of the same job classification who wish to share job duties. An employee who has not identified the person to fill the other half of the job share can also submit a request to job share and indicate the FTE (minimum .4 FTE) that they would like to work.
- 3. Approval All requests are to be in writing and addressed to the Unit Manager of the position to be shared. The Unit Manager will review the request and make a recommendation to the Program Manager. If the Program Manager's recommendation is to approve the job share request, the request will be forwarded to the Division Director for final approval. A written response regarding the disposition of the request will be given within thirty (30) calendar days of the receipt of the request by the Division Director. If the request is granted, and one part of the shared position needs to be filled, then LCOG shall post the job share position internally for no less than 5 working days. Any bargaining unit employee who occupies, or has previously occupied, a position in the classification will be considered for the job share. If more than one employee applies for the job share, the decision to fill the vacancy will be made by LCOG. Where employees applying are equal in performance, fitness and job skills, LCOG agrees to

fill the position by seniority. If no one is selected by LCOG, then the job share position may be posted internally and then externally at LCOG's discretion.

LCOG reserves the right to limit the number of job share approvals at any time. LCOG reserves the right to assign tasks and job duties to the employees occupying the job share position. The decision reached on a job share request is not grievable.

- 4. Equipment and Schedules Employees requesting a job share must be willing to overlap work schedules to accommodate unit meetings and other events or meetings as assigned by the manager. Additionally, employees seeking approval must be willing to share a docking station, phone, desk and accompanying equipment. Employees who go out into the field will be assigned individual laptops. Requests should include proposed work schedules.
- 5. Benefits Job share employees will accrue vacation, sick and holiday leave prorated in accordance with the hours worked.

Employees will retain their employee performance review dates.

Benefits paid by LCOG based on a percentage of salary (PERS, for example) will continue to be paid based on the same percentage.

- 6. Ending a Job Share If one of the employees occupying a job share position leaves the position for any reason (resignation, retirement, termination, promotion or transfer to another position, etc.), the remaining job share employee shall be given twenty (20) working days to decide whether to continue in the position full-time or continue the job share. If the employee chooses to continue the job share, the employee may submit a new proposal with a new job share partner or request that the position be posted according to article 3 above.
- 7. Revoking a Job Share LCOG reserves the right to revoke a job share approval at any time. Employees holding a job share position will be given a minimum of twenty (20) working days' notice of the change, after which Article 8 (Seniority) applies.
- 8. All current job shares in effect as of July 1, 2016 shall remain in effect and now be covered by this article.

ARTICLE 24 – STANDARDS OF WORK

- 1. LCOG agrees it has the responsibility to advocate for seniors and people with disabilities and to provide to them quality services and information that promotes dignity, independence and choice.
- 2. LCOG will provide clearly defined tasks, accurate, and up-to-date job descriptions for all bargaining unit employees.
- 3. Workload Prioritization. Any employee may request assistance from his/her manager in establishing or adjusting priorities in order to carry out his/her work assignment. The

manager will take into account variables that impact the difficulty of assignments to the employee. The employee may request to have the response provided orally or in writing and the manager will respond accordingly in a timely manner.

ARTICLE 25 - CAREER DEVELOPMENT

- 25.1 LCOG shall reimburse regular employees for one half (1/2) the amount of tuition for courses (lectures and classes) determined by LCOG to be directly related to the employee's work, conducted outside the employee's regular working hours or, in extraordinary cases, during working hours, provided that the following conditions are met:
 - a. Funds for such expenditures are available in the current budget and the employee is a regular employee;
 - b. The employee has made application for approval of the course and tuition reimbursement at least two (2) weeks prior to the registration date of such course, if possible;
 - c. The manager provides assurance that any time taken off from work will not impair LCOG and program operations;
 - d. The employee submits verification of satisfactory completion of the course;
 - e. The employee is not receiving reimbursement for tuition from any other source;
 - f. Normally, the cost of textbooks and technical publications required for such courses shall be the responsibility of the employee. If LCOG approves the purchase of any textbooks and publications for such courses, said textbooks and publications shall become the property of LCOG;
 - g. The application of funds for tuition reimbursement shall be limited by the principle of fair distribution of available budgeted funds among employees, not limited to the number of course hours or courses taken by an individual employee, so long as they do not interfere with the employee's job performance and qualify as tax exempt under current IRS rules;
 - h. Opportunities are provided on a reasonable rotation basis among employees to assure equal access to learning experience within LCOG budget constraints; and
 - i. Time off with pay shall be allowed, and an employee shall be reimbursed for the expense of attending conferences or conventions when attendance is on an assigned LCOG business basis.
- 25.2 LCOG shall pay up to one hundred dollars (\$100) toward the membership of an employee in a professional society approved by the Executive Director.

25.3 Job Rotation/Developmental Opportunities

An Employee may request and LCOG may provide rotation/developmental opportunities by written agreement with employees who have the approval of their manager based on the operational needs of the agency or their work unit. The written agreement will include the duties, hours of work, and length of the assignment. There will be an internal process for these positions, consistent with Article 22 (filling of positions), before any external recruitment takes place. Employees selected for these positions will maintain all the rights and privileges they had in their regular status position. A job rotation or developmental opportunity shall not exceed two (2) years in length. Any person who accepts a job rotation or developmental opportunity has return rights to their previous position at the end of the assignment. No change in the performance appraisal date or merit increase date changes as a result of accepting a job rotation or developmental opportunity.

(a) <u>Job Rotation</u>: In order to qualify for a job rotation, an employee must meet the minimum qualification for the classification in which the position resides. If the person selected for the job rotation is coming from a higher classification, they will retain their current rate of pay. If the person selected for the job rotation is coming from a lower classification, they go over to the higher salary range and one step up from their current position, or go to step one in the new salary range, and go on promotional probation as outlined in the collective bargaining agreement.

(b) <u>Developmental Opportunity:</u> In order to qualify for a developmental opportunity, an employee must be able to achieve the minimum qualification of the position within the timeframe of the developmental opportunity. The person accepting the developmental opportunity will remain at their current level of pay. There will be no change in the performance appraisal date.

ARTICLE 26 – PERSONNEL FILES

- 26.1 LCOG shall maintain personnel records in the Human Resources Department. Upon request, each employee or his/her Union Representative as authorized by the employee in writing, shall have the right, with reasonable notice to LCOG, to review his/her personnel file during normal working hours. The employee may have a copy of any information in the personnel file. Employees shall not be charged for their first request for copies of material from the personnel file. Thereafter, LCOG may charge a reasonable fee for duplication.
- 26.2 Each employee shall read and sign any derogatory material that is placed in his/her personnel file. Signing does not necessarily indicate agreement. Material of a derogatory nature signed by the employee shall bear the following statement next to the signature line:

"Signing does not necessarily indicate agreement."

26.3 Employees shall have the right to submit rebuttal material to any derogatory material contained in their personnel file. LCOG will remove written reprimands from an

employee's personnel file two (2) years after the reprimand was issued, so long as no other related disciplinary actions occur within that time period.

ARTICLE 27 – EXISTING CONDITIONS AND SAVINGS CLAUSE

- 27.1 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to restrict the right of LCOG to adopt, change, or modify reasonable work rules or procedures necessary for the safe, orderly, and efficient operation of the agency. To the extent that any proposed changes in work rules or working conditions consist of or affect mandatory subjects of bargaining, LCOG agrees to notify the Union of the changes and, upon demand, to collectively bargain the mandatory negotiable aspects of the change in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes and Employment Relations Board rulings.
- 27.2 If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unlawful or unenforceable by any tribunal or competent jurisdiction, or by operation of law, or if either party is unable to perform any provision of this Agreement, such decision, operation of law or inability shall only apply to the specific provision affected. Upon request by either party, the parties shall enter into negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such provision, if possible.

ARTICLE 28 – TERM OF AGREEMENT

- 28.1 This Agreement shall become effective when it is signed by both parties, and shall remain in effect to and including June 30, 2019, except where otherwise specified in this Agreement.
- 28.2 This Agreement shall continue in effect from year to year thereafter, unless one party gives notice in writing to the other party of its desire to modify the Agreement. The notice must be given to the other party in writing and delivered no later than January 15 of the year of the expiration of this Agreement.
- 28.3 The parties shall commence negotiations within thirty (30) days after the notice is delivered.
- 28.4 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter appropriate for collective bargaining, and that the understandings and Agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, LCOG and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter without mutual consent, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or

signed this Agreement. All terms and conditions of employment not covered by this Agreement shall continue to be subject to LCOG's direction and control.

Executed this day <u>8</u> of <u>February</u>, 2017, in Eugene, Oregon.

For Lane Council of Governments

Brendalee S. Wilson, Executive Director

For the Service Employees International Union Local 503, Oregon Public Employees Union

Brian Rudiger, Executive Director SEIU Local 503, OPEU

Rosemary Barton) Collective Bargaining Representative

oralnet

Jonalou Haak Cøllective Bargaining Representative

ton longo

Kelton Monroe Collective Bargaining Representative

Nicole Newall Collective Bargaining Representative

Brende Lattion

Brenda Lattion Collective Bargaining Representative

Twila Jacobsen Collective Bargaining Representative

ackson

Stefanie Jackson Collective Bargaining Representative

1

Mariko Yoshioka, Chief Negotiator-SEIU Local 503, OPEU

<u>Exhibit A</u> Expired Letter of Agreement Stating Salary Survey Methodology

July 9, 2014 Salary Survey This Letter of Agreement Sunsets on June 30, 2016

LCOG, in partnership with the elected bargaining team, will perform a salary survey of all SEIU-represented classifications to determine whether they are competitive with similar agencies. The agencies to be surveyed are Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments, North West Senior and Disability Services, and the State of Oregon Aging and People with Disabilities. The survey shall determine the average salary for each classification among the three comparable agencies. Should the average for any classification be 3.5% or greater than that of the LCOG SEIU represented classification, LCOG shall adjust salaries for the classification by the percentage needed to make the salary equal to the average salary of the three agencies compared. The survey shall be completed by September 30, 2014 and salary adjustments implemented by January 1, 2015. The results of the survey shall be posted on the LCOG intranet.

Letter of Agreement - Standards of Work

July 29, 2016 This Letter of Agreement Sunsets on June 30, 2019

To promote respectful, responsive and effective service delivery to seniors and people with disabilities, LCOG and SEIU Local 503 agree to the following:

- 1. The parties will form a Standards of Work committee, including at least two (2) Unionappointed representatives from the bargaining unit to:
 - a. Review the relationship between funding allocations and workloads (including, but not limited to, sources of funding, restrictions on their use, and formulas used to determine allocations).
 - b. Review the DHS workload model to guide workload standards for the division.
 - c. Formulate what funding information and workload data will be published within the S&DS dashboard for the division.
 - d. Support the Continuous Improvement (CI) Committee with the goal of working toward meeting standards established for reasonable workloads consistent with person-centered principles.
 - e. Develop a process for staff to identify training and support needs while supporting a Quality Assurance & Training Model for S&DS staff.
- 2. The Labor-Management Committee will support the expectations described above by ensuring management and bargaining unit buy in at all levels, allowing the free exchange of ideas and information, providing requested information, sharing collected data, and implementing recommendations.

The activities and goals described in this Agreement are non-bargaining and not grievable. This agreement expires on June 30, 2019.

APPENDIX A – CLASSIFICATION LIST AND SALARY RANGES 2016-2019

SENIOR AND DISABILITY SERVICES DIVISION

| | ALARY ANGE |
|--|---------------|
| Administrative Aide III | 5 |
| Administrative Support Specialist | 6 |
| Administrative Aide IV | 8 |
| Satellite Office Administrative Assistant | 8 |
| Case Manager Assistant | 8 |
| APS Support | 8 |
| Background Check Specialist | 10 |
| Licensing and Monitoring Assistant | 10 |
| Eligibility Specialist | 11.29 |
| MMA Specialist | 11.29 |
| ADRC Specialist | 11.39 |
| Program Coordinator | 14.92 |
| Case Manager | 14.92 |
| Senior Connections Area Coordinator | 14.92 |
| STEPS Coordinator | 14.92 |
| Licensing and Monitoring Specialist | 15.86 |
| Transition and Diversion | 17.06 |
| Adult Protective Services Specialist | 17.27 |
| ADRC Lead Worker/Community Outreach Coordi | nator |
| | 17.92 |
| Case Manager – Lead Worker | 17.92 |
| Case Manager – Hospital | 17.92 |
| Eligibility Specialist – Lead Worker | 17.92 |
| PAS Screener | 20.06 |
| Adult Protective Services Specialist – Lead Worker | 20.27 |

All bilingual positions are one Range (3.5%) above the regular position.

APPENDIX B - PERMISSIBLE USE OF SICK TIME

Employees are entitled to use paid sick time under Article 14 of this Agreement for the following purposes:

- For an employee's or family member's mental or physical illness, injury or health condition or need for medical diagnosis of these conditions or need for preventive medical care.
- To care for an infant or newly adopted child under 18, or for a newly placed foster child under 18, or for a child over 18 if the child is incapable of self-care because of mental or physical disability.
- To care for a family member with a serious health condition.
- To recover from or seek treatment for a serious health condition that renders the employee unable to perform at least one of the essential functions of the employee's job.
- To care for a child of the employee who is suffering from a non-serious illness, injury or condition.
- To deal with the death of a family member by attending the funeral or alternative, making arrangements necessitated by the death of a family member, or grieving the death of a family member.
- To seek medical treatment, legal or law enforcement assistance, remedies to ensure health and safety, or to obtain other services related to domestic violence, sexual assault, harassment or stalking incidents to the employee or employee's minor child or dependent.
- For certain public health emergencies including closure by a public official of the employee's place of business, school or place of care of the employee's child, or a determination by a public health authority or health care provider that the presence of the employee or a family member presents a health risk to others.